
 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT 

ZONE NO. 1 & NO. 2 BOARD REGULAR 

MEETING 

 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Monday, July 12, 2021 at 4:00 PM  

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Board Members 
Dave Edwards, Chair 

Taline Manassian, Vice Chair 

Missy Atwood 

John McIntosh 

Walt Smith 

Bob Richardson (Advisory Board Member) 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Administrator Michelle Fischer 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

TIRZ Project Manager Keenan Smith 

TIRZ Administrator Jon Snyder, P3 Works 

 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained with in the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By low no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

MINUTES 

1. Discuss and consider approval of the May 10, 2021 TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board 

regular meeting minutes. 

 

 

1



BUSINESS 

2. Presentation and consideration of acceptance regarding the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Q2 

TIRZ Administrator Report. 

3. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Town Center Project Cost Sharing 

and Reimbursement. 

4. Update and discussion regarding Hays POSAC Grant Funding related to the Old 

Fitzhugh Road Multi-Use Trail and the Town Center Square and Pavilion.  

5. Discuss and consider possible action regarding TIRZ Priority Projects related to the Old 

Fitzhugh Road Project. 

6. Discuss and consider recommendation of appointment to TIRZ Boards and report on 

vacancies on member seats on the TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into executive 

session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by Texas 

Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real 

Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 

Board for the City of Drippings Springs may act upon any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session 

or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

7. Deliberation of Real Property regarding legal issues related to Real Property for the Tax 

Increment Reinvestment Zone including the Town Center Project and 

uses.  Deliberation of Real Property, 551.072 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board Meetings 
August 9, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 

September 13, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 

October 18, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 

City Council Meetings 
July 20, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. (Special Budget Meeting) 

July 20, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

July 29, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (Special Budget Meeting) 

August 3, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Board may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any Board 

Member for absence from this meeting. 

2



I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on July 9, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. 

 
City Secretary 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

3



 

TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board  May 10, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 

1 & NO. 2 BOARD REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Monday, May 10, 2021 at 4:00 PM 

MINUTES 

MEETING SPECIFIC VIDEOCONFERENCE INFORMATION 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85913766294?pwd=QTRBekFwS0NlK1NBVkxFZE4vSEo3UT09 

 

Meeting ID: 859 1376 6294 

Passcode: 655988 

 

Dial Toll Free: 
        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ky9llWRac 

 

Join by Skype for Business: https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/85913766294 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Board Members present were: 
Dave Edwards, Chair 

Taline Manassian, Vice Chair 

Missy Atwood 

Dan O'Brien 

John McIntosh 

Walt Smith (arrived at 5:42 p.m.) 

Bob Richardson (Advisory Board Member) 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials: 
City Administrator Michelle Fischer 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

Finance Director Shawn Cox 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Communications Director Lisa Sullivan 

TIRZ Project Manager Kennan Smith 

TIRZ Project Consultant Aldo Fritz, TJKM 

TIRZ Project Consultant Cory Peterson, TJKM 

4

Item 1.



 

TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board  May 10, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

With a quorum of the Board present, Chair Edwards called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained with in the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By low no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

Dripping Springs ISD Board President Joanna Day introduced the new Dripping Springs ISD 

Superintendent Holly Morris-Kuentz. 

Marily Minnaar with Texas League of Women Voters introduced herself and informed the Board that she 

will be attending TIRZ meetings in an effort to engage more in the community. 

MINUTES 

1. Discuss and consider approval of the April 12, 2021, TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board regular 

meeting minutes. 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Manassian to approve the April 12, 2021, TIRZ No. 1 & 

No. 2 Board regular meeting minutes.  Board Member Atwood seconded the motion which 

carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

BUSINESS 

2. Presentation and discussion regarding the Town Center Project Real Estate 

Agreements.  

Laura Mueller presented the staff report, which is on file, and provided a status update on the 

Dripping Springs ISD agreement. 

3. Update and discussion regarding TIRZ Priority Projects. 

a) Old Fitzhugh Road 

Keenan Smith, Aldo Fritz and Cory Peterson presented the item.  The Board discussed 

funding options, both public and private, including possible grant funding.  TJKM will 

provide data on all available funding options and will begin writing from day one. 

 

b) Downtown Parking 

Keenan Smith presented the update.  The Concept Plan is on pause pending the budget 

and funding. 

5

Item 1.



 

TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board  May 10, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

 

c) Triangle 

Keenan Smith presented the update.  This project continues to be on hold due to FEMA 

and TxDOT. 

4. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding the Fiscal Year 2022 TIRZ Budget 

request and recommendation. 

Keenan Smith presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends approval Scenario 

B for the Board’s budget recommendation. 

A motion was made by Board Member O’Brien to approve Scenario B for the Fiscal Year 

2022 TIRZ Budget request and recommendation.  Board Member McIntosh seconded the 

motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

5. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the reassessment and evaluation of TIRZ 

Priority Projects. 

Action was taken on this item in Open Session following the Executive Session. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into executive 

session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by Texas 

Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real 

Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 

Board for the City of Drippings Springs may act upon any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session 

or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Atwood to adjourn into Executive Session under Texas 

Government Code Section 551.071, Consultation with City Attorney and 551.072, Deliberation of 

Real Property, and regarding Business Agenda Item 4. Discuss and consider possible action 

regarding the reassessment and evaluation of TIRZ Priority Projects.  Board Member O’Brien 

seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

  

The Board met in Executive Session from 4:54 – 5:35 p.m.  No action or vote was taken during 

Executive Session. 

 

Chair Edwards returned the meeting to Open Session at 5:35 p.m. 

OPEN SESSION 

The Board returned to consider Business Agenda Item 5. 

5. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the reassessment and evaluation of TIRZ 

Priority Projects. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member O’Brien to recommend that TIRZ Priority Projects 

remain in place as is, and that the City Council focus on development of Old Fitzhugh Road; 

6

Item 1.



 

TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board  May 10, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

and, that the City Council move forward expeditiously to facilitate the Library District 

remaining as part of the Town Center Project and that the City Council move forward with 

the efforts that it can reasonably do so now in furtherance of the Town Center; and, 

development of Old Fitzhugh Road.  Board Member Manassian seconded the motion which 

carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board Meetings 
June 14, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 

July 12, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 

August 9, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 

City Council Meetings 
May 11, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

May 18, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

June 8, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

June 15, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

A motion was made by Board Member Smith to adjourn the meeting.  Board Member O’Brien seconded 

the motion which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

This regular meeting adjourned at 5:44 p.m. 

 

7

Item 1.



City of Dripping Springs

Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone

Executive Summary (Q2 2021)

July 08, 2021

Project Participants

City of Dripping Springs

Hays County

Dripping Springs Independent School District

Dripping Springs Community Library District

8

Item 2.



Creation 

Costs

Town 

Center

Old Fitzhugh 

Road

Triangle 

Drainage

Downtown 

Parking
Total

CREATION COSTS

FY 2017 60,971$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     60,971$             

FY 2018 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2019 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2020 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2021* ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

60,971$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     60,971$             

DIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 ‐                       146,758              84,610                5,706                   ‐                       237,075             

FY 2019 ‐                       79,887                2,450                   2,180                   18,182                102,699             

FY 2020 ‐                       40,250                2,050                   ‐                       11,678                53,978               

FY 2021* ‐                       16,736                9,513                   ‐                       22,347                48,596               

‐$                     283,632$            98,623$              7,886$                52,208$              442,348$           

ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 ‐                       75,357                43,446                2,930                   ‐                       121,733             

FY 2019 ‐                       76,728                2,353                   2,094                   17,463                98,639               

FY 2020 ‐                       104,367              5,316                   ‐                       30,281                139,964             

FY 2021* ‐                       26,800                15,233                ‐                       35,785                77,818               

‐$                     283,254$            66,347$              5,024$                83,530$              438,155$           

MARKET/P3 STUDY EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 ‐                       22,870                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       22,870               

FY 2019 ‐                       37,455                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       37,455               

FY 2020 ‐                       42,805                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       42,805               

FY 2021* ‐                       11,380                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       11,380               

‐$                     114,510$            ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     114,510$           

TOTAL EXPENSES

FY 2017 60,971$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     60,971$             

FY 2018 ‐                       244,985              128,056              8,636                   ‐                       381,678             

FY 2019 ‐                       194,071              4,803                   4,274                   35,645                238,793             

FY 2020 ‐                       187,422              7,366                   ‐                       41,960                236,747             

FY 2021* ‐                       54,917                24,745                ‐                       58,133                137,795             

60,971$              681,395$            164,970$            12,910$              135,738$            1,055,983$        

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 1: Total Cost Summary

2
9

Item 2.



Public Improvements City County Library  DSISD Total

Cost Participation 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

CREATION COSTS

FY 2017 60,971$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     60,971$             

FY 2018 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2019 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2020 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2021* ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

60,971$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     60,971$             

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 2: Creation Costs

3
10

Item 2.



City County Library  DSISD Total

Cost Participation

Direct & Indirect  33.33% 33.33% 33.33% 0.00% 100.00%

Market/P3 Study  34.00% 0.00% 0.00% 66.00% 100.00%

DIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 48,919                48,919                48,919                ‐                       146,758             

FY 2019 26,629                26,629                26,629                ‐                       79,887               

FY 2020 13,417                13,417                13,417                ‐                       40,250               

FY 2021* 5,579                   5,579                   5,579                   ‐                       16,736               

94,544$              94,544$              94,544$              ‐$                     283,632$           

ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 25,119                25,119                25,119                ‐                       75,357               

FY 2019 25,576                25,576                25,576                ‐                       76,728               

FY 2020 34,789                34,789                34,789                ‐                       104,367             

FY 2021* 8,933                   8,933                   8,933                   ‐                       26,800               

94,418$              94,418$              94,418$              ‐$                     283,254$           

MARKET/P3 STUDY EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 7,776                   ‐                       ‐                       15,094                22,870               

FY 2019 12,735                ‐                       ‐                       24,721                37,455               

FY 2020 14,554                ‐                       ‐                       28,251                42,805               

FY 2021* 3,869                   ‐                       ‐                       7,511                   11,380               

38,933$              ‐$                     ‐$                     75,577$              114,510$           

TOTAL EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 81,814                74,039                74,039                15,094                244,985             

FY 2019 64,940                52,205                52,205                24,721                194,071             

FY 2020 62,759                48,206                48,206                28,251                187,422             

FY 2021* 18,382                14,512                14,512                7,511                   54,917               

227,895$            188,962$            188,962$            75,577$              681,395$           

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 3: Town Center Expenditures

4
11

Item 2.



City County Library  DSISD Total

Cost Participation

Direct & Indirect  50.00% 50.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

DIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 42,305                42,305                ‐                       ‐                       84,610               

FY 2019 1,225                   1,225                   ‐                       ‐                       2,450                  

FY 2020 1,025                   1,025                   ‐                       ‐                       2,050                  

FY 2021* 4,756                   4,756                   ‐                       ‐                       9,513                  

49,311$              49,311$              ‐$                     ‐$                     98,623$             

ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 21,723                21,723                ‐                       ‐                       43,446               

FY 2019 1,177                   1,177                   ‐                       ‐                       2,353                  

FY 2020 2,658                   2,658                   ‐                       ‐                       5,316                  

FY 2021* 7,616                   7,616                   ‐                       ‐                       15,233               

33,174$              33,174$              ‐$                     ‐$                     66,347$             

TOTAL EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 64,028                64,028                ‐                       ‐                       128,056             

FY 2019 2,402                   2,402                   ‐                       ‐                       4,803                  

FY 2020 3,683                   3,683                   ‐                       ‐                       7,366                  

FY 2021* 12,373                12,373                ‐                       ‐                       24,745               

82,485$              82,485$              ‐$                     ‐$                     164,970$           

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 4: Old Fitzhugh Expenditures

5
12

Item 2.



City County Library  DSISD Total

Cost Participation

Direct & Indirect  33.33% 66.67% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

DIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 1,902                   3,804                   ‐                       ‐                       5,706                  

FY 2019 727                      1,453                   ‐                       ‐                       2,180                  

FY 2020 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2021* ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

2,629$                5,258$                ‐$                     ‐$                     7,886$               

ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 977                      1,953                   ‐                       ‐                       2,930                  

FY 2019 698                      1,396                   ‐                       ‐                       2,094                  

FY 2020 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2021* ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

1,675$                3,349$                ‐$                     ‐$                     5,024$               

TOTAL EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 2,879                   5,758                   ‐                       ‐                       8,636                  

FY 2019 1,425                   2,849                   ‐                       ‐                       4,274                  

FY 2020 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2021* ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

4,303$                8,607$                ‐$                     ‐$                     12,910$             

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 5: Triangle Expenditures

6
13

Item 2.



City County Library  DSISD Total

Cost Participation

Direct & Indirect  100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

DIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2019 18,182                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       18,182               

FY 2020 11,678                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       11,678               

FY 2021* 22,347                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       22,347               

52,208$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     52,208$             

ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2019 17,463                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       17,463               

FY 2020 30,281                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       30,281               

FY 2021* 35,785                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       35,785               

83,530$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     83,530$             

TOTAL EXPENSES

FY 2017 ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

FY 2018 ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

FY 2019 35,645                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       35,645               

FY 2020 41,960                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       41,960               

FY 2021* 58,133                ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       58,133               

135,738$            ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     135,738$           

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 6: Parking Expenditures

7
14

Item 2.



Year

PM & 

Coordination

Legal & 

Administration Regional DDS

Miscellaneous 

Expenses Total

FY 2017 ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

FY 2018 77,660$                33,703$                6,680$                  3,691$                  121,733$            

FY 2019 68,230$                29,936$                ‐$                      473$                     98,639$               

FY 2020 73,897$                63,062$                ‐$                      3,005$                  139,964$            

FY 2021* 41,644$                36,175$                ‐$                      ‐$                      77,818$               

Total 261,431$             162,875$             6,680$                  7,168$                  438,155$            

* Invoices received as of 6/30/2021

Table 7: Indirect Costs Summary

8
15

Item 2.



Year

Assessed Value 

[a]

Incremental 

Value %

Total City 

Collections [b]

TIRZ City 

Revenue [c]

TIRZ County 

Revenue [d] Total

FY 2017 37,912,603$      0.00% 63,686.71$           ‐$               ‐$                  ‐$            

FY 2018 48,892,539$      22.46% 88,768.75$           9,968$           24,430.36$      34,398$      

FY 2019 83,566,560$      54.63% 157,717.83$        43,082$         99,000.61$      142,083$    

FY 2020 107,588,343$    64.76% 196,760.23$        63,712$         147,608.06$   211,320$    

116,762$      271,039.03$   387,801$   

[b] Per TDSI City Payment Information provided by County Tax Collector.

[c] Equals City Collections x 50% x Incremental Value Percentage.

[d] Per the Hays County payment schedule provided on 2/24/2021.

[a] Assessed Value per Hays Central Appraisal District "Assessment Roll Grand Totals Report" printed on 5.26.2020 at 

9:03 AM.

Table 8: TIRZ No. 1 ‐ Estimated TIRZ Revenues

9
16

Item 2.



Year

Assessed Value 

[a]

Incremental 

Value %

Total City 

Collections [b]

TIRZ City 

Revenue [c]

TIRZ County 

Revenue [d] Total

FY 2017 5,836,710$        0.00% 20,858.24$          ‐$               ‐$                 ‐$               

FY 2018 12,307,670$      52.58% 22,745.46$          5,979$           14,397.89$     20,377$         

FY 2019 28,732,478$      79.69% 56,262.58$          22,417$         49,649.47$     72,066$         

FY 2020 48,439,951$      87.95% 91,643.17$          40,300$         90,254.97$     130,555$       

68,696$         154,302.33$   222,999$       

[b] Per TDSI City Payment Information provided by County Tax Collector.

[c] Equals City Collections x 50% x Incremental Value Percentage.

[d] Per the Hays County payment schedule provided on 2/24/2021.

[a] Assessed Value per Hays Central Appraisal District "Assessment Roll Grand Totals Report" printed on 5.26.2020 at 

9:03 AM.

Table 9: TIRZ No. 2 ‐ Estimated TIRZ Revenues

10
17

Item 2.



TIRZ NO. 1 CUMULATIVE REVENUES* 387,801$           

TIRZ NO. 2 CUMULATIVE REVENUES* 222,999$           

TOTAL TIRZ CUMULATIVE REVENUES* 610,800$           

LESS: CITY CREATION COSTS (60,971)$            

LESS: COUNTY CASH CONTRIBUTION (290,000)$          

LESS: TOWN CENTER ‐$                    

LESS: OLD FITZHUGH ‐ CITY ‐$                    

LESS: TRIANGLE ‐ CITY ‐$                    

LESS: PARKING ‐ CITY ‐$                    

LESS: TOTAL AMOUNT FUNDED DIRECTLY BY TIRZ (37,646)$            

(388,616)$          

TOTAL REMAINING TIRZ REVENUE 222,184$           

*Revenues received through FY 2020.

Table 10: Total Cash Position

11
18

Item 2.



TIRZ NO. 1 REVENUE EXPECTED Q2 21 (a) 272,397$                   

TIRZ NO. 2 REVENUE EXPECTED Q2 21 (b) 197,541$                   

469,938$                   

LESS: FY 2021 BUDGET (c) (162,795)$                 

REMAINING TIRZ REVENUES CASH ON HAND FROM 1/31/21 COLLECTIONS 307,143$                   

AVAILABLE CASH AS OF 3/31/2021 222,184$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL CASH POSITION AT END OF FY 21 529,327$                   

LESS: FY 2022 BUDGET (d) (434,000)$                 

ESTIMATED TOTAL CASH POSITION AT END OF FY 22 (EXCLUDING FY22 TIRZ REVENUE) 95,327$                     

Table 11 ‐ FY 2021 Budget and Estimated Ending Cash Balance

(a) Estimates based on HCAD Estimated Certified Assessed Values dated August 4, 2020. Assumes $89,249 in City TIRZ No. 1 Revenue and $183,148

in County TIRZ No. 1 Revenue.

(b) Estimates based on HCAD Estimated Certified Assessed Values dated August 4, 2020. Assumes $64,723 in City TIRZ No. 2 Revenue and $132,818

in County TIRZ No. 2 Revenue.

(c) Assumes amounts spent through 6/30/21 plus $25,000 to be spent through 9/30/21.

(d) Preliminary estimate, not yet approved by City Council.  Assumes FY 2022 expenditures will occur prior to receiving TIRZ revenue paid 1/31/22.

12
19

Item 2.



TIRZ No. 1 TIRZ No. 2 Total

Creation Costs ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                          

City ($60,971 Reimbursed) ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                          

Town Center to be Reimbursed* 369,325$                   123,108$                   492,434$                  

City ‐ 33% + 33% of P3/MKT Study** 170,921$                  56,974$                    227,895$                 

County ‐ 33%  ($188,962 Reimbursed) ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                          

Library ‐ 33% 141,721$                  47,240$                    188,962$                 

DSISD ‐ 67% of P3/MKT Study** 56,682$                    18,894$                    75,577$                   

Old Fitzhugh Rd to be Reimbursed 82,485$                     ‐$                           82,485$                    

City ‐ 50% *** 82,485$                    ‐$                           82,485$                   

County ‐ 50%  ($82,485 Reimbursed) ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                          

Triangle to be Reimbursed 3,228$                       1,076$                       4,303$                      

City ‐ 33% **** 3,228$                      1,076$                      4,303$                     

County ‐ 67%  ($8,607 Reimbursed) ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                          

Parking to be Reimbursed 101,803$                   33,934$                     135,738$                  

City ‐ 100% ***** 101,803$                  33,934$                    135,738$                 

Total to be Reimbursed 556,841$                   158,119$                   714,959$                  

City ($60,971 Reimbursed) 358,437$                   91,984$                     450,421$                  

County ($290,000 Reimbursed) ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                          

Library 141,721$                   47,240$                     188,962$                  

DSISD 56,682$                     18,894$                     75,577$                    

*Town Center reimbursement postponed per board decision.

*** $0 reimbursed to date for Old Fitzhugh Road.

**** $0 reimbursed to date for the Triangle.

***** $0 reimbursed to date for Parking.

Table 12 ‐ Breakdown of TIRZ Eligible Reimbursements

** Includes Town Center Market Study ($20,000) and P3 Study ($84,370 + $30,000) allocated between City (33%) 

and County (67%).

13
20

Item 2.



TIRZ 

Year

Construction 

Year

Heritage 

Home 

Construction

Heritage 

Home Price

Heritage Multi‐

Family 

Construction

Heritage Multi‐

Family Price Value Added

Assessed Value 

Added

Arrowhead 

Home 

Construction

Bunker Ranch 

Home 

Construction

Bunker Ranch 

Condo 

Construction

Arrowhead 

Home Price

Bunker Ranch 

Home Price

Bunker Ranch 

Condo Price Value Added

Assessed Value 

Added

4 2020 ‐                    300,000$         ‐                    125,000$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    357,338$         523,800$         283,000$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

5 2021 ‐                    309,000$         ‐                    128,750$         ‐$                      ‐$                      50                     29                     10                     368,058$         539,514$         291,490$         36,963,713$        ‐$                     

6 2022 ‐                    318,270$         ‐                    132,613$         ‐$                      ‐$                      50                     29                     10                     379,100$         555,699$         300,235$         38,072,624$        36,963,713$       

7 2023 ‐                    327,818$         ‐                    136,591$         ‐$                      ‐$                      50                     29                     10                     390,473$         572,370$         309,242$         39,214,803$        38,072,624$       

8 2024 89                     337,653$         ‐                    140,689$         30,051,085$        ‐$                      50                     18                     12                     402,187$         589,542$         318,519$         34,543,329$        39,214,803$       

9 2025 89                     347,782$         ‐                    144,909$         30,952,618$        30,051,085$        46                     ‐                    ‐                    414,253$         607,228$         328,075$         19,055,623$        34,543,329$       

10 2026 89                     358,216$         100                   149,257$         46,806,850$        30,952,618$        ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    426,680$         625,445$         337,917$         ‐$                      19,055,623$       

11 2027 89                     368,962$         ‐                    153,734$         32,837,632$        46,806,850$        ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    439,481$         644,208$         348,054$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

12 2028 89                     380,031$         ‐                    158,346$         33,822,761$        32,837,632$        ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    452,665$         663,534$         358,496$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

13 2029 89                     391,432$         ‐                    163,097$         34,837,444$        33,822,761$        ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    466,245$         683,440$         369,251$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

14 2030 61                     403,175$         ‐                    167,990$         24,593,670$        34,837,444$        ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    480,232$         703,943$         380,328$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

15 2031 ‐                    415,270$         ‐                    173,029$         ‐$                      24,593,670$        ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    494,639$         725,062$         391,738$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

16 2032 ‐                    427,728$         ‐                    178,220$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    509,479$         746,814$         403,490$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

17 2033 ‐                    440,560$         ‐                    183,567$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    524,763$         769,218$         415,595$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

18 2034 ‐                    453,777$         ‐                    189,074$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    540,506$         792,294$         428,063$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

19 2035 ‐                    467,390$         ‐                    194,746$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    556,721$         816,063$         440,905$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

20 2036 ‐                    481,412$         ‐                    200,588$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    573,423$         840,545$         454,132$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

21 2037 ‐                    495,854$         ‐                    206,606$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    590,625$         865,762$         467,756$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

22 2038 ‐                    510,730$         ‐                    212,804$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    608,344$         891,734$         481,789$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

23 2039 ‐                    526,052$         ‐                    219,188$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    626,594$         918,486$         496,242$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

24 2040 ‐                    541,833$         ‐                    225,764$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    645,392$         946,041$         511,129$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

25 2041 ‐                    558,088$         ‐                    232,537$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    664,754$         974,422$         526,463$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

26 2042 ‐                    574,831$         ‐                    239,513$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    684,697$         1,003,655$      542,257$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

27 2043 ‐                    592,076$         ‐                    246,698$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    705,237$         1,033,765$      558,525$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

28 2044 ‐                    609,838$         ‐                    254,099$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    726,395$         1,064,778$      575,281$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

29 2045 ‐                    628,133$         ‐                    261,722$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    748,186$         1,096,721$      592,539$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

30 2046 ‐                    646,977$         ‐                    269,574$         ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    770,632$         1,129,623$      610,315$         ‐$                      ‐$                     

Table 13: New Assessed Value Calculation

TIRZ No. 1 TIRZ No. 2

14

21

Item 2.



Year No.

Fiscal 

Year TIRZ No. 1 TIRZ No. 2 City County

City 

Contribution 

@ 50%

County 

Contribution 

@ 50% Annual Total

City 

Contribution 

@ 50%

County 

Contribution 

@ 50% Annual Total

Annual Grand 

Total

0 2017 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                      ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                      ‐$                     

1 2018 9,968$             24,430$           34,398$                5,979$             14,398$           20,377$                54,775$               

2 2019 43,082$           99,001$           142,083$              22,417$           49,649$           72,066$                214,149$            

3 2020 63,712$           147,608$         211,320$              40,300$           90,255$           130,555$             341,876$            

4 2021 131,858,712$        73,966,086$          0.1900$           0.3899$           125,266$         257,059$         382,324$              70,268$           144,197$         214,465$             596,789$            

5 2022 135,814,473$        113,148,782$        0.1900$           0.3899$           129,024$         264,770$         393,794$              107,491$         220,584$         328,075$             721,869$            

6 2023 139,888,908$        154,615,869$        0.1900$           0.3899$           132,894$         272,713$         405,608$              146,885$         301,424$         448,309$             853,917$            

7 2024 144,085,575$        198,469,149$        0.1900$           0.3899$           136,881$         280,895$         417,776$              188,546$         386,916$         575,461$             993,237$            

8 2025 178,459,227$        238,966,552$        0.1900$           0.3899$           169,536$         347,906$         517,443$              227,018$         465,865$         692,884$             1,210,326$         

9 2026 214,765,622$        265,191,171$        0.1900$           0.3899$           204,027$         418,686$         622,713$              251,932$         516,990$         768,922$             1,391,635$         

10 2027 268,015,441$        273,146,907$        0.1900$           0.3899$           254,615$         522,496$         777,111$              259,490$         532,500$         791,989$             1,569,100$         

11 2028 308,893,536$        281,341,314$        0.1900$           0.3899$           293,449$         602,188$         895,637$              267,274$         548,475$         815,749$             1,711,386$         

12 2029 351,983,103$        289,781,553$        0.1900$           0.3899$           334,384$         686,191$         1,020,575$          275,292$         564,929$         840,222$             1,860,797$         

13 2030 397,380,040$        298,475,000$        0.1900$           0.3899$           377,511$         774,692$         1,152,203$          283,551$         581,877$         865,428$             2,017,632$         

14 2031 433,895,111$        307,429,250$        0.1900$           0.3899$           412,200$         845,879$         1,258,079$          292,058$         599,333$         891,391$             2,149,470$         

15 2032 446,911,965$        316,652,127$        0.1900$           0.3899$           424,566$         871,255$         1,295,821$          300,820$         617,313$         918,133$             2,213,954$         

16 2033 460,319,324$        326,151,691$        0.1900$           0.3899$           437,303$         897,393$         1,334,696$          309,844$         635,833$         945,677$             2,280,373$         

17 2034 474,128,903$        335,936,242$        0.1900$           0.3899$           450,422$         924,314$         1,374,737$          319,139$         654,908$         974,047$             2,348,784$         

18 2035 488,352,770$        346,014,329$        0.1900$           0.3899$           463,935$         952,044$         1,415,979$          328,714$         674,555$         1,003,269$          2,419,247$         

19 2036 503,003,353$        356,394,759$        0.1900$           0.3899$           477,853$         980,605$         1,458,458$          338,575$         694,792$         1,033,367$          2,491,825$         

20 2037 518,093,454$        367,086,602$        0.1900$           0.3899$           492,189$         1,010,023$     1,502,212$          348,732$         715,635$         1,064,368$          2,566,580$         

21 2038 533,636,258$        378,099,200$        0.1900$           0.3899$           506,954$         1,040,324$     1,547,278$          359,194$         737,104$         1,096,299$          2,643,577$         

22 2039 549,645,345$        389,442,176$        0.1900$           0.3899$           522,163$         1,071,534$     1,593,697$          369,970$         759,218$         1,129,188$          2,722,884$         

23 2040 566,134,706$        401,125,441$        0.1900$           0.3899$           537,828$         1,103,680$     1,641,508$          381,069$         781,994$         1,163,063$          2,804,571$         

24 2041 583,118,747$        413,159,204$        0.1900$           0.3899$           553,963$         1,136,790$     1,690,753$          392,501$         805,454$         1,197,955$          2,888,708$         

25 2042 600,612,309$        425,553,980$        0.1900$           0.3899$           570,582$         1,170,894$     1,741,475$          404,276$         829,617$         1,233,894$          2,975,369$         

26 2043 618,630,679$        438,320,600$        0.1900$           0.3899$           587,699$         1,206,021$     1,793,720$          416,405$         854,506$         1,270,911$          3,064,630$         

27 2044 637,189,599$        451,470,218$        0.1900$           0.3899$           605,330$         1,242,201$     1,847,531$          428,897$         880,141$         1,309,038$          3,156,569$         

28 2045 656,305,287$        465,014,324$        0.1900$           0.3899$           623,490$         1,279,467$     1,902,957$          441,764$         906,545$         1,348,309$          3,251,266$         

29 2046 675,994,446$        478,964,754$        0.1900$           0.3899$           642,195$         1,317,851$     1,960,046$          455,017$         933,742$         1,388,758$          3,348,804$         

30 2047 696,274,279$        493,333,697$        0.1900$           0.3899$           661,461$         1,357,387$     2,018,847$          468,667$         961,754$         1,430,421$          3,449,268$         

Note: TIRZ No. 2 can only fund 25% of Town Center, Downtown Parking, and Triangle costs.  The amounts shown are gross revenues, not revenues subject to the cap.

TIRZ No. 2

Table 14:  TIRZ Revenue Calculations

Tax Rates TIRZ No. 1Incremental Assessed Value

15
22

Item 2.



Year No.
Fiscal 

Year
TIRZ No. 1 TIRZ No. 2*

Total Annual 

Revenue

Cumulative 

Revenue
Annual Cumulative

0 2017 ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                       60,971$                       60,971$                       (60,971)$              

1 2018 34,398$                20,377$                54,775$                54,775$                381,678$                     442,648$                     (387,873)$            

2 2019 142,083$              72,066$                214,149$              268,924$              238,793$                     681,442$                     (412,517)$            

3 2020 211,320$              130,555$              341,876$              610,800$              320,000$                     1,001,442$                 (390,642)$            

4 2021 382,324$              214,465$              596,789$              1,207,589$          320,000$                     1,321,442$                 (113,853)$            

5 2022 393,794$              328,075$              721,869$              1,929,458$          320,000$                     1,641,442$                 288,016$             

6 2023 405,608$              448,309$              853,917$              2,783,374$          200,000$                     1,841,442$                 941,933$             

7 2024 417,776$              575,461$              993,237$              3,776,612$          180,000$                     2,021,442$                 1,755,170$         

8 2025 517,443$              692,884$              1,210,326$          4,986,938$          160,000$                     2,181,442$                 2,805,496$         

9 2026 622,713$              767,808$              1,390,521$          6,377,459$          160,000$                     2,341,442$                 4,036,017$         

10 2027 777,111$              ‐$                       777,111$              7,154,570$          160,000$                     2,501,442$                 4,653,128$         

11 2028 895,637$              ‐$                       895,637$              8,050,206$          160,000$                     2,661,442$                 5,388,765$         

12 2029 1,020,575$          ‐$                       1,020,575$          9,070,781$          160,000$                     2,821,442$                 6,249,340$         

13 2030 1,152,203$          ‐$                       1,152,203$          10,222,985$        160,000$                     2,981,442$                 7,241,543$         

14 2031 1,258,079$          ‐$                       1,258,079$          11,481,064$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 8,499,622$         

15 2032 1,295,821$          ‐$                       1,295,821$          12,776,885$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 9,795,443$         

16 2033 1,334,696$          ‐$                       1,334,696$          14,111,581$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 11,130,139$       

17 2034 1,374,737$          ‐$                       1,374,737$          15,486,318$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 12,504,876$       

18 2035 1,415,979$          ‐$                       1,415,979$          16,902,296$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 13,920,855$       

19 2036 1,458,458$          ‐$                       1,458,458$          18,360,755$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 15,379,313$       

20 2037 1,502,212$          ‐$                       1,502,212$          19,862,967$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 16,881,525$       

21 2038 1,547,278$          ‐$                       1,547,278$          21,410,245$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 18,428,803$       

22 2039 1,593,697$          ‐$                       1,593,697$          23,003,942$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 20,022,500$       

23 2040 1,641,508$          ‐$                       1,641,508$          24,645,449$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 21,664,008$       

24 2041 1,690,753$          ‐$                       1,690,753$          26,336,202$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 23,354,761$       

25 2042 1,741,475$          ‐$                       1,741,475$          28,077,677$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 25,096,236$       

26 2043 1,793,720$          ‐$                       1,793,720$          29,871,397$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 26,889,956$       

27 2044 1,847,531$          ‐$                       1,847,531$          31,718,928$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 28,737,487$       

28 2045 1,902,957$          ‐$                       1,902,957$          33,621,886$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 30,640,444$       

29 2046 1,960,046$          ‐$                       1,960,046$          35,581,931$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 32,600,490$       

30 2047 2,018,847$          ‐$                       2,018,847$          37,600,779$        ‐$                              2,981,442$                 34,619,337$       

34,350,779$        3,250,000$          37,600,779$        2,981,442$                Total

* TIRZ No. 2 revenue capped at 25% of TIRZ Expenditures for Town Center, Downtown Parking, and Triangle Improvements.  The Analysis assumes a total cost of $13 million of these 

improvements, thereby capping TIRZ No. 2 revenue at 25% of $25 million, or $3,250,000.

TIRZ Revenues Available

TIRZ Revenue Surplus/(Shortage)

Table 15: TIRZ Cash Flow

Projected General Ledger Costs

16
23

Item 2.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

C I T Y    O F    D R I P P I N G    S P R I N G S 
T a x    I n c r e m e n t    R e i n v e s t m e n t    Z o n e  

(TIRZ) #1 and #2 
 
 

H A Y S    C O U N T Y    P O S A C –  
P R O J E C T    U P D A T E 

June 25, 2021 
 

To:  Hays County Park Bond Program Manager  
 Halff Team– James Hemenes, Project Manager 
 
Re:  TIRZ Priority Projects: Old Fitzhugh Road / Multi-Use Trail 

 

 

24

Item 4.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 2 of 2 

The following is an update of substantive changes to the Project Information Form (PIF).  
 Unless noted below, all other PIF information remains unchanged and valid as submitted. 

 
Old Fitzhugh Rd. / Multi-Use Trail Project 

 
1) Design Program (unchanged as submitted) 

 
2) Size & Scope of Project (unchanged as submitted) 

 
3) Funding Availability (Potential Match increased)  

a) Grant Writer hired (2/21) to identify supplemental project funding (for “non-trail” Scopes 
of Work).  List of Recommended Grants & Funding Plan deliverables forthcoming. 

b) Plans, Specifications & Estimates Phase Services (PSE’s): an initial $175,000 funding 
allocation was included in the TIRZ FY’22 Budget for recommended approval by the 
City of Dripping Springs City Council.  

c) Q. Can PSE’s be treated as “in-kind” contribution / match to the POSAC Bond Funding? 
 

4) Updated Cost Estimates (Total Project Costs significantly increased: $4.8M > $6.2M) 
a) Cost Estimate was Updated (April 2021) with significant increases in the Probable 

Construction Costs due to annual escalation and post COVID inflation. (attachments) 
b) Q.  Does the updated Cost Estimate present an opportunity to adjust (increase) the 

POSAC Funding Request for OFR Multi-Use Trail Project? (e.g. $1.305M > $2.115M)? 
 
5) Anticipated Schedule (Project Schedule Updated) 

a) Project Timeline brought current to 6/21 and reflecting present Project Understanding.  
Activities, dates & durations adjusted: Funding Identification, Land Acquisition, 
Planning & Design, & Trail & Pedestrian Improvements.    (attachments) 

 
6) Project Partners (unchanged as submitted) 
 
7) Other Changes Affecting the Project (none) 
 
8) Other Questions for POSAC and Hays County Parks Bond Program Managers: 

a) “In Kind” match credit if TIRZ / City funds the PSE’s (Final Engineering & Design)? 
b) Opportunity to revise/increase POSAC Funding Request (Cost Estimate Adjustments)? 
c) Expected Timeframe for POSAC Bond Funding Award (as funding becomes available & 

coordinated w/ project needs)? 
 
 
 
 

*   *   * 
 
 

25

Item 4.



Old Fitzhugh Rd.- Multi-Use Trail (Trail)- “Hays POSAC- Project Budget & Phasing:" 
6/25/21- Hays County POSAC Update 
 
 

• Land Acquisition- (ROW “Cleanup” @ 3 Parcels: 7,507 total sf- per Doucet Surveys & Exhibits) 
• Project Planning & Design (Soft Costs- PSE / A&E fees)- advance the design & get “shovel ready" 
• Trail, Lighting & Pedestrian Improvements (Trail Portions only) 

 

 

Hays POSAC Summary: 

Phase Cost Element Conceptual 
Budget 

Notes 

1 Land Acquisition (3 ROW Parcels) $75,000 $10/sf. X 7,507 total- ***budget allowance 
2 Project Planning & Design (PSE’s- A&E) $630,000 Full Service Fees- HDR Estimate: 2018* 
3 Trail, Lighting & Pedestrian Improvements $1,410,000 HDR Estimate-2021* (Trail Portions only) 
   See: HDR Cost Estimate Markup for 

“Trail Cost Apportionment” Notes... 
 Total: $2,115,000 Adjusted per 2021 Cost Estimate Update 

 

 
 

26

Item 4.



QTY PRICE

REMOVAL
100 PREPARING ROW STA 2,500.00$               33                82,500$        

REMOVAL SUBTOTAL $83,000

ROADWAY
110 EXCAVATION (ROADWAY) CY 25.00$                    5,882           147,050$      
132 EMBANKMENT CY 25.00$                    509              12,725$        
247 FL BS (CMP IN PLC)(TYA GR1-2)(FNAL POS) CY 70.00$                    3,168           221,760$      
310 PRIME COAT(MC-30 OR AE-P) GAL 5.00$                      2,281           11,405$        
340 D-GR HMA(SQ) TY-B PG64-22 TON 140.00$                  2,006           280,840$      
340 D-GR HMA(SQ) TY-D PG76-22 TON 140.00$                  1,003           140,420$      
340 TACK COAT GA 5.00$                      1,459           7,295$          
529 CONC CURB (TY II) LF 25.00$                    2,895           72,375$        
529 CONC CURB & GUTTER (TY II) LF 30.00$                    3,229           96,870$        
530 DRIVEWAYS (ACP) SY 70.00$                    1,301           91,070$        

TCM-001 TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES EA 20,000.00$             5                  100,000$      

ROADWAY SUBTOTAL $1,182,000

PEDESTRIAN ELEMENTS
531 CURB RAMPS (TY 7) EA 2,500.00$               13                32,500$        

531
8' WIDE SHARED USE PATH OR SIDEWALK 
(INCLUDES GRADING, EXP AGG CONCRETE 
FOR NEW, WIDENED OR REPAIRED PATHS)

SY 110.00$                  2,884           317,240$      

DS-001 FLAGSTONE SIDEWALK SY 120.00$                  333              39,960$        

DS-002

PATH/SIDEWALK FURNISHINGS ALLOWANCE 
(ALLOWANCE FOR BENCHES, DRINKING 
FOUNTAINS, PET STATIONS, WASTE BINS PER I 
MILE)

LS 20,000.00$             1                  20,000$        

PEDESTRIAN ELEMENTS SUBTOTAL $410,000

DRAINAGE
110 CHANNEL EXCAVATION CY 60.00$                    500              30,000$        
420 STORM DRAIN OUTFALLS EA 17,000.00$             4                  68,000$        
432 12" ROCK RIPRAP SY 150.00$                  1,300           195,000$      
464 18" RCP STORM DRAIN LF 150.00$                  810              121,500$      
464 24" RCP STORM DRAIN LF 160.00$                  1,570           251,200$      
464 30" RCP STORM DRAIN LF 180.00$                  450              81,000$        
465 STORM DRAIN INLETS EA 7,000.00$               5                  35,000$        

DRAINAGE SUBTOTAL $782,000

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD COST ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT PRICE1

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF
PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ITEM

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD

Page 1 of 3

Date: 06/09/21
Location: Dripping Springs, TX

27

Item 4.

Keenan Smith
Hays Co. POSAC Update:
TIRZ Project Mgr Markup
210618- KES

Keenan Smith

Keenan Smith
Multi-Use Trail, Pedestrian Improvements: $410K

Keenan Smith

Keenan Smith



QTY PRICE

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD COST ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT PRICE1

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF
PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ITEM

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD

ILLUMINATION
416 DRILL SHAFT (RDWY ILL POLE) (30 IN) LF 300.00$                  96                28,800$        
618 CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (2") LF 15.00$                    3,150           47,250$        
618 CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (2") (BORE) LF 35.00$                    350              12,250$        
620 ELEC CONDR (NO.6) BARE LF 3.00$                      3,500           10,500$        
620 ELEC CONDR (NO.6) INSULATED LF 3.50$                      7,320           25,620$        
624 GROUND BOX TY C (162911)W/APRON EA 1,500.00$               16                24,000$        
628 ELC SRV TY D 120/240 070(NS)SS(E)SP(U) EA 8,000.00$               7                  56,000$        

DS-004 DECORATIVE POLE LIGHTING ASSEMBLY EA 3,200.00$               16                51,200$        
DS-005 PATHWAY LIGHTING EA 600.00$                  325              195,000$      

ILLUMINATION SUBTOTAL $451,000

LANDSCAPING

180 NATIVE GRASSLAND SEEDING AND PLANTING 
(FOR RAIN GARDENS) SY 15.00$                    1,250           18,750$        

192 RAIN GARDENS SF 90.00$                    2,000           180,000$      

DS-003

3" CALIPER TREES (SPECIES CLASS 1 TYPES, 
PER COA HERITAGE TREE ORDINANCE TIF 419 
SOD FOR INFORMAL, "OPEN PLAY" 
RECREATIONAL AREAS

EA 2,500.00$               60                150,000$      

DS-006 IRRIGATION SYSTEM EA 30,000.00$             1                  30,000$        

LANDSCAPING SUBTOTAL $379,000

SUM OF QUANTIFIED COSTS $3,287,000

Page 2 of 3

Date: 06/09/21
Location: Dripping Springs, TX

28

Item 4.

Keenan Smith

Keenan Smith
Pathway Lighting + Landscaping Improvements: $574K

Keenan Smith

Keenan Smith



QTY PRICE

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD COST ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT PRICE1

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF
PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ITEM

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD

UNQUANTIFIED COSTS2

Construction Traffic Control MO 8,000.00$               8                  64,000$        
Temporary and Permanent Erosion Control 3.0% 1                  98,610$        
Signing and Pavement Markings 2.0% 1                  65,740$        
Utility Relocations and Adjustments 10.0% 1                  328,700$      
Mobilization & Demobilization 10.0% 1                  328,700$      
Construction Contingency3 30.0% 1                  986,100$      

SUM OF UNQUANTIFIED COSTS $1,872,000

CONSTRUCTON SUBTOTAL $5,159,000

RELATED PROJECT COSTS4,5

Right of Way (Construction Easements) 4.0% 1                  206,360$      
Indirect Costs 4.0% 1                  206,360$      
Inflation 13.0% 1                  670,670$      

TOTAL OPTION COST 2021 $6,242,000

ADD ALTERNATIVES
529 CURB (DECORATIVE STONE) LF 90.00$                    2,895           260,550$      

ADD ALTERNATIVES TOTAL $261,000

1. Based on TxDOT unit prices and Engineering Judgement: April 2021. 4. Percentage calculated from CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL.

2. Percentage calculated from SUM OF QUANTIFIED COSTS.

3. Contingency is included to account for conceptual level of detail.

This estimate represents our engineering judgment as professionals knowledgeable with the construction of similar projects. This estimate is for planning and programming 
purposes only and does not guarantee what actual construction costs will be.

5. Engineering, Design, and Construction Engineering and Inspection (CE&I) 
have been removed from this submittal.

Page 3 of 3

Date: 06/09/21
Location: Dripping Springs, TX

29

Item 4.

Keenan Smith

Keenan Smith
Contingency: +30%

Keenan Smith

Keenan Smith
Inflation: +13%

Keenan Smith
Multi-Use Trail: Cost Apportionment Notes:
———————————————————
Multi-Use Trail, Pedestrian Elements, Landscaping & Pathway Lighting = $0.984M* 
(Constr. Costs: $0.410M + $0.574M =  $0.984M)

Add Markups: Construction Contingency + Inflation (4/21 data) = + 43% on Construction Costs

Total Trail Portion = Construction Costs $0.984M x 1.43 = $1.41M*
————————————————————————
ഀ吀漀琀愀氀 倀爀漀樀攀挀琀 䌀漀猀琀 䔀猀琀椀洀愀琀攀㨀 ␀㘀Ⰰ㈀㐀㈀䴀⨀�
(w/o Bid Alternates)

Keenan Smith
*Cost Estimate Update: 2021

Keenan Smith
Total Multi-Use Trail Portion: $1.41M*



TIRZ OFR Project Schedule Page 1

TIRZ PRIORITY PROJECTS
Master Project Schedule:
21-Jun-21

M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D
Old Fitzhugh Road 

2.0: TIRZ- Drainage & Easement Consultingw/ Development Projects *

2.1: CODS / TIRZ- Project Funding Sources Identification / ROW Acquisitions * (6/15/21) Grant & Project Funding Identified / ROW Acquisitions
2.2: CODS / TIRZ- Grant Funding Solicitation & Procurement (9-12 mos.) * (6/15/22) $ Project Funding In Place
2.3: CODS / TIRZ- Final Engineering & Design (PSE's) (6-9 mos.) (RFQ) * *
2.4: CODS / TIRZ- Engineering Bid Docs Complete * (6/15/22) Engineering Complete > Permit Docs Issued
2.5: CODS / TIRZ- OFR Improvements Permitting Phase (3-6 mos.) * * (12/15/22) Permits Issued > Bid Docs Issued
2.5: CODS / TIRZ- Contractor RFP's / Bidding / Negotiations & Acceptance (3-4 mos.) * (4/15/23) Contractor Selected
2.6: CODS- Contract Award for OFR Improvements / Contractor Mobilization * (5/15/23) Contract Award & Mobilization
2.7: CODS- OFR Improvements Construction (12-15 mos.) * * Construction Complete
2.8: CODS- OFR Improvements Acceptance / Completion (8/15/24) Acceptance / Project Completion

Graphic Key: = Current Dateline
= Activity / Duration Period

* = Decision / Approval
= Milestone / Key Event (1/15/24)

* = Linkage / Contingency
= TIRZ Budget Period

$ = Project Funding

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Ph. 1 “Land Acquisition” + 
Ph. 2 “Project Planning & Design” (PSE’s)
Oct. ’21 > > >

Ph. 3 “Trail, Lighting & Ped. Improvements” 
Jun. ’23 > > >

Hays Co. POSAC
Project Schedule / Phasing Update
TIRZ - PM / 210621- KES

30

Item 4.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

C I T Y    O F    D R I P P I N G    S P R I N G S 
T a x    I n c r e m e n t    R e i n v e s t m e n t    Z o n e  

(TIRZ) #1 and #2 
 
 

H A Y S    C O U N T Y    P O S A C –  
P R O J E C T    U P D A T E 

June 25, 2021 
 

To:  Hays County Park Bond Program Manager  
 Halff Team– James Hemenes, Project Manager 
 
Re:  TIRZ Priority Projects: Town Center Square & Pavilion 

 

 
 

31

Item 4.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 2 of 2 

The following is an update of substantive changes to the Project Information Form (PIF).  
 Unless noted below, all other PIF information remains unchanged and valid as submitted. 

 
Town Center Square & Pavilion Project 

 
1) Design Program, Size & Scope, Updated Cost Estimates Anticipated Schedule (Update) 

a) Dripping Springs Independent School District property for the planned Town Center 
Project has become unavailable (City Council action- Special Meeting 4/28/21- attached). 

b) Defining Elements of the Project are quantitatively indeterminate as of 6/21, reflecting 
City of Dripping Springs’ current investigations & pursuit of various alternative sites for 
the Town Center Project. 

c) A significantly scaled, centralized Urban Park, Greenbelt, Public Green or Open Space 
system will remain a fundamental and defining planning element within any alternative 
Town Center Project.  

 
2) Project Partners (Update) 

a) The City of Dripping Springs, Hays County and the Dripping Springs Community 
Library remain active partners in the Town Center Project. 

b) Dripping Springs Independent School District is no longer an active partner in the Town 
Center Project. 

 
3) Other Questions for POSAC and Hays County Parks Bond Program Managers: 

a) Pending relocation of the Town Center Project within the Downtown Dripping Springs 
core area, and redefinition the associated Urban Parks and fundamental Open Space 
elements within it, could the prospective POSAC funding (or a portion thereof) possibly 
be redirected & “relocated” to another site in Downtown Dripping Springs? 

b) Barring project relocation, redefinition and the funding shift suggested above, could 
prospective funding for the Town Center Square & Pavilion project (or a portion thereof) 
possibly be reallocated to the TIRZ Old Fitzhugh Rd. Multi-Use Trail Project?  

c) Expected Timeframe for POSAC Bond Funding Award (as funding becomes available & 
coordinated w/ project needs & other requirements)? 

 
 
 
 

*   *   * 
 
 

32

Item 4.



 

City of Dripping Springs 
Post Office Box 384 
511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 
 

Agenda Item Report from: TIRZ Project Manager / Keenan Smith
 

TIRZ Board Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 
Agenda Item Wording: 

Old Fitzhugh Rd.- 2021 Preliminary Cost Estimate Update 
 
 
  

Agenda Item Requestor: TIRZ Project Manager 
Board Member 
Sponsor: Dave Edwards / Chair 

Summary/Background:   
 
The Old Fitzhugh Road Concept Plan developed by TIRZ Project Team was approved by City Council August 21, 2018.  
 
The work included a “Preliminary Estimate” prepared by the Project Engineer (HDR) dated 6/20/18 (attached).  At that 
time, the “Total Project Estimated Cost” (including all Alternative Bid Items) stood at $4,822,653. 
 
Since its development, the Preliminary Cost Estimate has served as a benchmark, and has facilitated discissions about 
project funding, TIRZ budget priorities and implementation strategies (including as basis for the Hays County POSAC 
application).  However, given the passage of (3 years) time, regular annual escalation trends, plus the extraordinary 
inflation conditions being experienced currently in regional and national construction costs, an update was needed.  
The purpose was to refresh the estimate & establish current project costs, while providing a more accurate “funding 
target” to guide the parallel OFR Grant Writing efforts. 
 
The approved OFR Concept Plan remains the working basis.  HDR was directed to update the Preliminary Estimate to 
“bring the costs current.” Refinements include removing “percentage” soft cost fee allocations (to be covered and 
more accurately defined in a separate, pending RFP for Plans Specifications and Estimates- PSE’s).  Certain cost 
headings were also re-grouped and re-categorized to facilitate allocations by potential funding types and sources 
(i.e., Roadway, Pedestrian Elements, Drainage, etc.). Clarification and differentiation between “Quantified” (hard 
construction) and “Unquantified” (the associated, allocated) costs was also improved. Recap is as follows: 
 

                “Old Fitzhugh Road Cost Estimate- Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs” (HDR- 6/9/21) 
                
                               Sum of Quantified Costs:                                                                     $3,287,000 (Hard Costs) 
                               Sum of Unquantified Costs:                                                                 $1,872,000 (incl. 30% Contingency) 
                                                                                                                                                    -------------- 
                               Construction Subtotal:                                                                          $5,159,000  
                                                                                                                                                    -------------- 
                               Total 2021 Project Costs (including Related Project Costs*):       $6,242,000 (incl. 13% Inflation) 
 

                            *Engineering & Design (PSE) fees to be defined by separate Scope of Work & RFP Proposal 
 

33

Item 5.



 

 
 

Cost Estimator Notes & TIRZ PM Comments:  
 

1. Estimator’s Design Information: “Old Fitzhugh Road Final Concept Plan (2018) as approved by City Council.  
2. Estimator’s Cost Basis: TxDOT April 2021 Bid Prices on Quantified Cost items and Engineering Judgement. 
3. Construction Contingency: 30% was added due to the conceptual nature of the design. This contingency will 

be tightened & reduced once PSE’s work can be advanced and provide more accurate design information.   
4. Utility Relocations and Adjustments: 8% of Construction Subtotal was allocated, based on preliminary utility 

conflicts analysis. Further definition & resolution will occur during PSE’s which could impact overall costs. 
5. Construction Cost Inflation: 13% added to “Related Project Costs” due to extraordinary spikes and volatility 

in materials, supply chains, and labor shortages post-COVID.  See attached “AGC 2021 Inflation Alert.” 
6. Engineering & Design Costs: RFP for PSE’s Scope of Work and Fees will be issued separately and accounted 

for in the “Total Project Cost” with more accuracy once detailed proposals are received and negotiated. 
 
 

*   *   * 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
 
Keenan E. Smith, AIA 
TIRZ Project Manager 
 
June 9, 2021 / 1740 hrs. 
 

 
 

34

Item 5.



QTY PRICE

REMOVAL
100 PREPARING ROW STA 2,500.00$               33                82,500$        

REMOVAL SUBTOTAL $83,000

ROADWAY
110 EXCAVATION (ROADWAY) CY 25.00$                    5,882           147,050$      
132 EMBANKMENT CY 25.00$                    509              12,725$        
247 FL BS (CMP IN PLC)(TYA GR1-2)(FNAL POS) CY 70.00$                    3,168           221,760$      
310 PRIME COAT(MC-30 OR AE-P) GAL 5.00$                      2,281           11,405$        
340 D-GR HMA(SQ) TY-B PG64-22 TON 140.00$                  2,006           280,840$      
340 D-GR HMA(SQ) TY-D PG76-22 TON 140.00$                  1,003           140,420$      
340 TACK COAT GA 5.00$                      1,459           7,295$          
529 CONC CURB (TY II) LF 25.00$                    2,895           72,375$        
529 CONC CURB & GUTTER (TY II) LF 30.00$                    3,229           96,870$        
530 DRIVEWAYS (ACP) SY 70.00$                    1,301           91,070$        

TCM-001 TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES EA 20,000.00$             5                  100,000$      

ROADWAY SUBTOTAL $1,182,000

PEDESTRIAN ELEMENTS
531 CURB RAMPS (TY 7) EA 2,500.00$               13                32,500$        

531
8' WIDE SHARED USE PATH OR SIDEWALK 
(INCLUDES GRADING, EXP AGG CONCRETE 
FOR NEW, WIDENED OR REPAIRED PATHS)

SY 110.00$                  2,884           317,240$      

DS-001 FLAGSTONE SIDEWALK SY 120.00$                  333              39,960$        

DS-002

PATH/SIDEWALK FURNISHINGS ALLOWANCE 
(ALLOWANCE FOR BENCHES, DRINKING 
FOUNTAINS, PET STATIONS, WASTE BINS PER I 
MILE)

LS 20,000.00$             1                  20,000$        

PEDESTRIAN ELEMENTS SUBTOTAL $410,000

DRAINAGE
110 CHANNEL EXCAVATION CY 60.00$                    500              30,000$        
420 STORM DRAIN OUTFALLS EA 17,000.00$             4                  68,000$        
432 12" ROCK RIPRAP SY 150.00$                  1,300           195,000$      
464 18" RCP STORM DRAIN LF 150.00$                  810              121,500$      
464 24" RCP STORM DRAIN LF 160.00$                  1,570           251,200$      
464 30" RCP STORM DRAIN LF 180.00$                  450              81,000$        
465 STORM DRAIN INLETS EA 7,000.00$               5                  35,000$        

DRAINAGE SUBTOTAL $782,000

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD COST ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT PRICE1

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF
PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ITEM

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD

Page 1 of 3

Date: 06/09/21
Location: Dripping Springs, TX

35

Item 5.



QTY PRICE

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD COST ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT PRICE1

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF
PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ITEM

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD

ILLUMINATION
416 DRILL SHAFT (RDWY ILL POLE) (30 IN) LF 300.00$                  96                28,800$        
618 CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (2") LF 15.00$                    3,150           47,250$        
618 CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (2") (BORE) LF 35.00$                    350              12,250$        
620 ELEC CONDR (NO.6) BARE LF 3.00$                      3,500           10,500$        
620 ELEC CONDR (NO.6) INSULATED LF 3.50$                      7,320           25,620$        
624 GROUND BOX TY C (162911)W/APRON EA 1,500.00$               16                24,000$        
628 ELC SRV TY D 120/240 070(NS)SS(E)SP(U) EA 8,000.00$               7                  56,000$        

DS-004 DECORATIVE POLE LIGHTING ASSEMBLY EA 3,200.00$               16                51,200$        
DS-005 PATHWAY LIGHTING EA 600.00$                  325              195,000$      

ILLUMINATION SUBTOTAL $451,000

LANDSCAPING

180 NATIVE GRASSLAND SEEDING AND PLANTING 
(FOR RAIN GARDENS) SY 15.00$                    1,250           18,750$        

192 RAIN GARDENS SF 90.00$                    2,000           180,000$      

DS-003

3" CALIPER TREES (SPECIES CLASS 1 TYPES, 
PER COA HERITAGE TREE ORDINANCE TIF 419 
SOD FOR INFORMAL, "OPEN PLAY" 
RECREATIONAL AREAS

EA 2,500.00$               60                150,000$      

DS-006 IRRIGATION SYSTEM EA 30,000.00$             1                  30,000$        

LANDSCAPING SUBTOTAL $379,000

SUM OF QUANTIFIED COSTS $3,287,000

Page 2 of 3

Date: 06/09/21
Location: Dripping Springs, TX

36

Item 5.



QTY PRICE

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD COST ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT

UNIT PRICE1

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF
PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ITEM

OLD FITZHUGH ROAD

UNQUANTIFIED COSTS2

Construction Traffic Control MO 8,000.00$               8                  64,000$        
Temporary and Permanent Erosion Control 3.0% 1                  98,610$        
Signing and Pavement Markings 2.0% 1                  65,740$        
Utility Relocations and Adjustments 10.0% 1                  328,700$      
Mobilization & Demobilization 10.0% 1                  328,700$      
Construction Contingency3 30.0% 1                  986,100$      

SUM OF UNQUANTIFIED COSTS $1,872,000

CONSTRUCTON SUBTOTAL $5,159,000

RELATED PROJECT COSTS4,5

Right of Way (Construction Easements) 4.0% 1                  206,360$      
Indirect Costs 4.0% 1                  206,360$      
Inflation 13.0% 1                  670,670$      

TOTAL OPTION COST 2021 $6,242,000

ADD ALTERNATIVES
529 CURB (DECORATIVE STONE) LF 90.00$                    2,895           260,550$      

ADD ALTERNATIVES TOTAL $261,000

1. Based on TxDOT unit prices and Engineering Judgement: April 2021. 4. Percentage calculated from CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL.

2. Percentage calculated from SUM OF QUANTIFIED COSTS.

3. Contingency is included to account for conceptual level of detail.

This estimate represents our engineering judgment as professionals knowledgeable with the construction of similar projects. This estimate is for planning and programming 
purposes only and does not guarantee what actual construction costs will be.

5. Engineering, Design, and Construction Engineering and Inspection (CE&I) 
have been removed from this submittal.

Page 3 of 3

Date: 06/09/21
Location: Dripping Springs, TX

37

Item 5.



The construction industry is currently experiencing an unprecedented mix 
of steeply rising materials prices, snarled supply chains, and staffing 
difficulties, combined with slumping demand that is keeping many 
contractors from passing on their added costs. This combination threatens 
to push some firms out of business and add to the industry’s nearly double-
digit unemployment rate. 

The situation calls for immediate action by federal trade officials to end 
tariffs and quotas that are adding to price increases and supply shortages. 
Officials at all levels of government need to identify and remove or lessen 
any unnecessary or excessive impediments to the importation, domestic 
production, transport, and delivery of construction materials and products. 
Project owners need to recognize how much conditions have changed for 
projects begun or awarded in the early days of the pandemic or before 
and to consider providing greater flexibility and cost-sharing. Contractors 
should become even more vigilant about changes in materials costs and 
expected delivery dates and should communicate the information promptly 
to current and prospective clients. 

This report is intended to provide all parties with better understanding of 
the current situation, the impact on construction firms and projects, its likely 
course in the next several months, and possible steps to mitigate the 
damage. The document will be revised to keep it timely as conditions 
change. Please send comments and feedback to AGC of America’s chief 
economist, Ken Simonson, ken.simonson@agc.org. 

CONSTRUCTION 
INFLATION ALERT 
 

Q1

www.agc.org 38

Item 5.



2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 2 

Rising costs, flat project pricing 
Figure 1 illustrates the threat to contractors from fast and steeply rising prices for materials, both for 
projects that have already been bid or started and for preparing -price or guaranteed-maximum-price 
bids. The red line shows the change since April 2020 in the price of all materials and services used in 

nonresidential construction, while the blue line measures the change—or lack 
of change—in what contractors say they would charge to erect a set of 
nonresidential buildings. This blue line, essentially a measure of bid prices, has 
remained virtually stable, rising only 0.5% from April 2020 to February 2021. In 
contrast, the red line, measuring the cost of contractors’ purchases, has soared 
nearly 13% over the same 10 months. 

In other words, if a contractor or subcontractor submitted a fixed-price bid in 
April 2020 based on materials costs at that time but did not buy the materials 
until February 2021, its cost for the materials would have risen an average of 
nearly 13%. Given that materials often represent half or more of the cost of a 
contract, such an increase could easily wipe out the profit from a project and 
create severe financial hardship for the contractor. 

F I G U R E  1  

In fact, Figure 1 understates the severity of the current situation for many contractors, in three 
respects. First, the two lines are calculated from producer price indexes (PPIs) posted monthly by the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS). The most recent PPIs are based on prices BLS collected around 
February 11.  

Since then, numerous materials have risen even more steeply in price. For instance, the national 
average retail price of on-highway diesel fuel climbed from $2.80 per gallon on February 8 to $3.19 
on March 22, a rise of 14% in just six weeks, according to a weekly truckstop survey posted by the 
Energy Information Administration. Private price-tracking services have reported similarly steep 
increases for a variety of steel, lumber, and engineered wood products. 

12.8% 
Input costs for general 
contractors have soared 
nearly 13% from April 
2020 to February 2021 

39

Item 5.



 

 
 2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 3  

Second, contractors are incurring costs not captured by this measure. 
Delayed deliveries, higher expenditures for personal protective equipment 
and other sanitation measures, and shortages of employees or 
subcontractors’ workers on jobsites due to coronavirus impacts are all 
driving up contractors’ costs. In some cases, project completions are being 
delayed, meaning contractors receive needed payments later and may incur 
penalties for missed deadlines. 

Third, many projects or subcontractors’ packages are heavily weighted 
toward materials that have risen much more in price than the overall PPI 
for inputs. As Figure 2 shows, the PPI for diesel fuel (at the fuel terminal, 
not retail) increased 114% between April 2020 and February 2021. The 
PPI for lumber and plywood jumped 62%. The index for copper and 
brass mill shapes climbed 37% and the PPI for steel mill products rose 20%. 

 
F I G U R E  2  

 

 

Some broad categories of products have not gone up dramatically, but narrower 
classes of products within those categories have. For instance, the PPI for plastic 
construction products rose “only” 6% from March 2020 to January. But an AGC 
member reported on March 5 that for polyvinyl chloride (PVC) “used in electric 
utility work the price from [March 2020] to January 2021 had a general increase 
of 85%.” Following extreme winter weather in Texas that knocked out 
production facilities and created a surge in demand for pipe to replace broken 
lines, “Now that increase is 270% from March 2020” to March 4, 2021. 

In recent weeks, producers and distributors of many additional materials have 
announced large price increases. Some have already been imposed, while others 
are scheduled to take effect in the next few weeks. 

For example, a leading producer of spray polyurethane products, used for 
building sealants and insulation, announced on March 12 that it would increase prices 12-15%, 
“effective for all new and existing orders shipping after April 12.” On March 4 another supplier 

114% 
Diesel fuel PPI (Producer 
Price Index) has 
increased more than 
114% between April 
2020 to February 2021 

270% 
Due to extreme weather 
conditions and general 
demand, PVC prices 
have increased over 
270% from March 2020 
to March 2021 

40

Item 5.



 

 
 2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 4  

notified customers of two price increases of 10% each, effective on April 5 and May 1. On March 
10, a major building-products distributor announced 19 broad categories of price increases, ranging 
as high as a 20% increase effective on April 5 for “all wallboard and glass mat products.” 

In addition to sudden price increases, contractors are experiencing delivery times that have stretched 
or become completely unreliable. A producer of building mesh told customers on March 15, 
“Volatility in the costs associated with producing and shipping standard welded wire reinforcement 
has made it necessary for us to withdraw all previously issued price lists. The availability of SWWR 
has been negatively impacted by the shortage of raw materials; therefore, lead times previously 
quoted will require review.” 

 
Not a short-term problem 
Some might assume contractors will simply raise their prices to cover the added costs. But current 
conditions in the industry, as well as the record from previous episodes of escalating materials costs, 
suggest that the mismatch between materials costs and contractors’ prices is likely to persist for an 
extended period. 

The pandemic has caused current production and delivery of many materials to fall short of demand. 
Initially, a wide range of factories, mills, and fabrication facilities were shut down on their owners’ 
initiative or because government orders deemed them to not be “essential.” In some cases, 
contractors—particularly homebuilders—canceled orders because they no longer saw demand for 
construction. Once production facilities were allowed to re-open, many of them had trouble getting 
up to full capacity because their own workers or those of their suppliers and freight haulers may have 
been ill, quarantined, or required to care for family members at home. 

Imported products and components also were subject to production and shipping shutdowns in the 
early months of the pandemic. This particularly affected many products from China and northern 
Italy, ranging from kitchen cabinets and appliances to tile flooring to elevators. In recent months, 
production has increased but containers, ships, port space, and trucking capacity have all experienced 
bottlenecks that have slowed deliveries. 

Dramatic shifts in demand triggered, at least in part, by the 
pandemic have added to price pressures and shortages of goods. 
Housing starts have increased between 15% and 20% from year-
earlier levels, creating huge additional demand for wood products 
and other items that are also used in nonresidential construction. 
Restaurants that added decks and railings for outdoor dining, along 
with offices and other buildings undergoing remodeling, added to 
demand for these products. 

A more recent source of price increases and extended lead times 
was the extreme winter weather that struck Texas in February. 
Widespread, unanticipated power failures and unusual freezing temperatures shut down 
petrochemical plants that normally operate around the clock. Frozen pipes burst, adding to the 
damage. Repairing the damage and getting complex facilities back to full operating rates is likely to 
take several months in some cases. 

Loss of this production affects plastic resins and other “building blocks” for a wide range of 
construction products, including: PVC pipe and other hard plastic products like plumbing fittings 

15-20% 
Housing starting costs have 
increased between 15% to 
20% from year-earlier levels 

 

41

Item 5.



 

 
 2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 5  

and fixtures; vinyl siding and vapor barriers; binders or "glue" for the particles and layers of plywood 
and oriented strand board (OSB), and adhesives for backing/facing for wallboard. Various types of 
cardboard, paper, and plastic packaging, tapes, and fasteners, including ones for shipping and 
protecting construction materials, also depend on resins. The freeze also added to demand for plastic 
pipe and fittings to replace broken water lines, adding to the demand-supply imbalance. 

Yet another cause of higher prices and tighter supply is trade policy actions imposed in 2018-2020. 
Tariffs or quotas on steel and aluminum from many countries, along with tariffs on hundreds of 
parts and materials from China, drove up the cost of many construction products and limited the 
number of suppliers, which has led to longer delivery times. Failure to renew a longstanding 
softwood lumber agreement with Canada has added to lumber costs. 

Although the ostensible purpose of some of the trade actions was to protect and create jobs in the 
U.S. manufacturing sector, steel in particular, very little capacity has been added so far. Many 
manufacturers merely raised their prices in tandem with the imposition of tariffs. 

 
PAST EPISODES 

The construction industry has endured previous spells of rapid cost 
escalation. For instance, the PPI for goods used in new nonresidential 
construction accelerated from a 3.6% year-over-year rate of increase in 
January 2004 to 10.0% by October of that year and remained above a 5% 
annual rate for a total of 31 months, before subsiding to a 3.2% rate in 
October 2006. 

Less than a year later, materials costs soared again, rising from a 1.6% 
annual growth rate in August 2007 to 12.9% in September 2008. The 
financial crisis that fall brought rates down rapidly but, again, only for 
about a year. The growth rate spiked from 0.4% year-over-year in 
December 2009 to 5.8% the following April and remained above or close 
to 5% until early 2012. 

The most recent episode of high materials cost increases was from November 2018 through 
November 2019, when the year-over-year price change ranged from 4.9% to 9.2%. 

While each of these price spikes eventually subsided, they caused enormous harm to contractors, 
who generally were not able to pass along the increases for an extended period. Not only were firms 
that had already signed contracts to deliver a project at a fixed price caught by the increases, but 
competition kept contractors from raising bids to match for a year or longer. A comparison of the 
year-over-year change in the PPI for materials with the PPIs for five types of new nonresidential 
buildings shows there were periods as long as 28 consecutive months with such price disparities. 
That is, contractors’ bid prices rose less—or decreased—relative to the cost of the goods they 
purchased.  For the most part, these months coincided with periods in which the value of 
nonresidential construction was stagnating or shrinking. 

Figure 3 shows this comparison for one building type, new warehouse building construction. Periods 
in which the PPI for goods used in nonresidential construction exceeded the PPI for warehouse 
contractors’ bid prices appear in red. The longer these intervals last and the higher the peak—i.e. the 
larger the gap between costs and bid prices—the more likely it is that some contractors will have 
financial difficulties. The current period already has one of the highest peaks. 

12.9%  
In the past price inflation, 
materials costs experienced an 
annual growth rate increase of 
12.9% in September 2008 

 

42

Item 5.



 

 
 2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 6  

F I G U R E  3  

 

 
CURRENT DEMAND FOR CONSTRUCTION 
The construction market currently is marked by a huge disparity. Residential construction 
spending—comprising new single- and multifamily structures along with additions and renovations 
to owner-occupied housing—jumped 21% from January 2020 to January 2021. Over the same 12 
months, private nonresidential construction spending tumbled 10%.  

Employment data show a similar story. Both residential and nonresidential 
construction employment plunged by 14-15% from February to April 2020. 
But over the next nine months, through January 2021, employment among 
residential building and specialty trade contractors rebounded to the same level 
as in February 2020, immediately before the pandemic struck. In contrast, in 
those nine months nonresidential building, specialty trade and heavy and civil 
engineering contractors added back little more than half of the employees they 
lost between February and April 2020. 

AGC has surveyed its members repeatedly since March 2020 to gauge the 
impact of the pandemic on their businesses. Consistently, and as recently as 
March 2021, only about one-third of firms reported the volume of their 
business had matched or exceeded the levels of one year before, while an equal 
share predicted they would not return to that level for more than six months. The remainder either 
thought it would take 1-6 months to reach year-ago levels or didn’t know. These results, like the 
spending and employment data, point to a large amount of downward pressure on contractors’ 
ability to pass along material cost increases. (Full survey results are available here: 
https://www.agc.org/news/2021/03/11/march-2021-agc-coronavirus-survey-results.) 

Change in material costs vs. change in warehouse bid prices, Jan. 2006 -Feb. 2021
Difference between year-over-year change in costs vs. bid prices

Source: Bureau of Labor Sta/s/cs, producer price indexes forgoods inputs to nonresiden/al construc/on (material costs) 
and new warehouse construc/on (bid prices)

-12%

-9%

-6%

-3%

0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

2009 2018 20212013 2015201220112010 201720162014 2019 20202006 2007 2008

= period when 
change in costs 
exceeded change 
in bid price

21%  
Residential construction 
spending jumped 21% 
from January 2020 to 
January 2021 

43

Item 5.



 

 
 2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 7  

What can contractors 
and owners do? 
While contractors cannot unclog ports or rescind tariffs, they can provide project owners with timely 
and credible third-party information about changes in relevant material costs and supply-chain snarls 
that may impact the cost and completion time for a project that is underway or for which a bid has 
already been submitted.  

Owners can authorize appropriate adjustments to design, completion date, and payments to 
accommodate or work around these impediments. Nobody welcomes a higher bill, but the 
alternative of having a contractor stuck with impossible costs or timing is likely to be worse for many 
owners. 

For projects that have not been awarded or started, owners should start with realistic expectations 
about current costs and the likelihood of increases. They should provide potential bidders with 
accurate and complete design information to enable bidders to prepare bids that minimize the 
likelihood of unpleasant surprises for either party. 

Owners and bidders may want to consider price-adjustment clauses that would protect both parties 
from unanticipated swings in materials prices. Such contract terms can enable the contractor to build 
in a smaller contingency to its bid, while providing the owner an opportunity to share in any savings 
from downward price movements (which are likely at some point, particularly for long-duration 
projects). The ConsensusDocs suite of contract documents (www.ConsensusDocs.org) is one source 
of industry-standard model language for such terms. The ConsensusDocs 200.1 Materials Price 
Escalation Addendum offers the only standard contract document that addresses price escalation.  

The parties may also want to discuss the best timing for ordering materials and components. Buying 
items earlier than usual can provide protection against cost increases but it comes with the need to 
pay sooner for the items and potentially paying for storage, security against theft and damage, and 
the possibility of design changes that make early purchase unwise. 

 

 
  

44

Item 5.



 

 
 2021 CONSTRUCTION INFLATION ALERT | 8  

Conclusion 
The construction industry is in the midst of a period of 
exceptionally steep and fast-rising costs for a variety of materials, 
compounded by major supply-chain disruptions and stagnant or 
falling demand for projects—a combination that threatens the 
financial health of many contractors. No single or simple 
solution will resolve the situation, but there are steps that 
government officials, owners, and contractors can take to lessen 
the pain. 

Federal trade policy officials can act immediately to end tariffs 
and quotas on imported products and materials. With many U.S. 
mills and factories already at capacity, bringing in more imports 
at competitive prices will cool the overheated price spiral and 
enable many users of products that are in short supply to avoid 
layoffs and shutdowns. 

Officials at all levels of government should review all regulations, policies, and enforcement actions 
that may be unnecessarily driving up costs and slowing importation, domestic production, transport, 
and delivery of raw materials, components, and finished goods. 

Owners need to recognize that significant adjustments are probably appropriate regarding the price 
or delivery date of projects that were awarded or commenced early in the pandemic or before, when 
conditions at suppliers were far different. For new and planned projects, owners should expect quite 
different pricing and may want to consider building in more flexibility regarding design, timing, or 
cost-sharing. 

Contractors need, more than ever, to closely monitor costs and delivery schedules for materials and 
to communicate information with owners, both before submitting bids and throughout the 
construction process. 

Materials prices do eventually reverse course. Owners and contractors alike will benefit when that 
happens. Until then, cooperation and communication can help reduce the damage. 

No single or simple 
solution will resolve 
the situation, 
but there are steps 
that government 
officials, owners, and 
contractors can take 
to lessen the pain 

45

Item 5.



Old Fitzhugh Road Grants 
Update

June 14, 2021

TIRZ Project committee

46

Item 5.



Schedule Recap

• Project Awarded/Contract Approved: February 24

• Project Kickoff: March 9th

• Grant Research began: March 15th
• interaction: 

• Non-profit organizations: (Abbvie, HEB, UPS Foundation, Robert Wood Johnson, 
International Mountain Bicycling Association, Lola Wright Foundation)

• Government: EPA, CAMPO, TXDOT, EDA

• Grant Research: 
• 47 Grants
• 6 Grants: highest eligibility

• Grant Barriers: Slum & Blight, OFR is a local road, Income limitations

47

Item 5.



Original OFR
Trail, Lighting, Pedestrian 
Improvements $600,000.00 
Preliminary Engineering & Design $630,000.00 

Construction $1,191,879.83 
Contingency (30%) $ 726,563.95

Right of Way Easements (3%) $ 94,453.31
Preliminary Engineering & Design 

(12%) $ 377,813.25
Landscape/Hardscape Design (8%) $ 251,875.50

Construction Engineering & 
Inspection (CE&I) 10% $ 314,844.38

Indirect (4%) $ 125,937.75
Alternative Bid Costs $ 509,285

Total Project Estimated Cost $4,822,652.97 

Posac Reserved$1,305,000.00 (27% of Budget)
City Match $261,000.00 (20% of POSAC)

Overall GAP $3,517,652.97 

2021 Estimates
Total Project Estimated Cost $6,341,456.00 

Posac Reserved $ 1,305,000.00 (20% of Budget)
City Match $261,000.00 (20% of POSAC)
Overall GAP $5,036,456.00 

Overall Gap Increase 43%

OFR Project Budget

48

Item 5.



Grant Research (recommended)

• 43 Grants
OPEN/
CLOSED Funding Level Agency Grant Name Funding Amount Type Due Date

Grant 
Application 
Difficulty Level Grant Info Additional Comments Money Needed

OPEN

Federal US DOT

FY 2021 National 
Infrastructure 
Investment -RAISE $1.0 b. Multi-modal July 12, 2021 High (YEARLY)

Possibly needs to have started NEPA 
process; may need to be included in 
regional TIP or STIP. Utility 
Coordination not included ($100k, 
currently budgeted)

2-4 weeks to register via 
website

$1,268,291 (20% of total 
budget)

CLOSED

Private
Keep Texas 
Beautiful 

Governor’s 
Community 
Achievement Awards

$100,000 to 
130,000 Landscaping March 4, 2021 Medium Used for landscaping improvements Possible for next year $0 

OPEN
Private PeopleForBikes

Community Grant 
Program up to $10,000 Bike/Ped

October 15, 
2021 Medium Funds bicycle infrastructure projects

Possible for extra 
amenity

OPEN

Private T-Mobile
T-Mobile Hometown 
Grants program up to $50,000 Revitalization

End of each 
quarter Medium

Grant funds projects to build, rebuild, 
or refresh community spaces that 
help foster local connections in the 
town

Fall: Applications open 
July – Sept., Towns 
announced in Oct.

OPEN
OPEN Private

Community Heart and 
Soul Grant $10,000

Seed Grant 
Program Rolling Low

Provides up to $10k seed 
grants to implement 
Community Heart & Soul 
model.

OPEN
State TxDOT

Highway Safety 
Improvement 
Program - Systemic 
Improvements

Varies Safety
Opens in June 
2021; close in 
October

High

One of the systemic work code 
options (doesn't require crash history 
or SII), is roadway widening. It 
requires 11' lanes, 3' shoulders on 
each side, and rumble strips.

47 grants found. 5 grants recommended

49

Item 5.



Budget Summary

Year 2021 Year 2022 Year 2023 Year 2024 Year 2025 Notes

Total Project Budget $ 6,341,456 $        6,341,456 $    5,271,456 $    3,275,456 $           3,275,456

Total Reserved (Posac) $           705,000 $       600,000 $                    -

Grants $                 - $           190,000 $    1,310,000 $                    - $                           -

City Match (TIRZ funded) $           175,000 $         86,000 $                    - $                           -

Additional City Funds Provided

Balance Remaining $ 6,341,456 $        5,271,456 $    3,275,456 $    3,275,456 $           3,275,456

Keep Texas Beautiful 
Governor’s Community 
Achievement Awards $100,000 to 130,000 2022

PeopleForBikes Community Grant Program up to $10,000 2022

T-Mobile
T-Mobile Hometown Grants 
program up to $50,000 2022

Private
Community Heart and Soul 
Grant $10,000 2023

TxDOT
Highway Safety Improvement 
Program - Systemic 
Improvements

$1,300,000 (varies) 2023

Grant Research (recommended)

50

Item 5.



Additional Grant Funding

Funding Funding Available Comments

TxDOT: TASA funding: Selection in October (every 2 
years) (Bike and Pedestrian Projects) $500-$1.3M

Dripping Springs submitted preliminary grant.will be asked to continue with 
full grant. Due June 14th

Surface Transportation Block Group Grant Still waiting for clarification
OFR project may not qualify because it is a local road: still waiting on 
clarification (OFR may not qualify, call will be in 2022)

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality varies 60% federal/ 40% local match (opens early June)

Highway Safety Improvement Program (TXDOT) $1.3-$3M for Austin District (per year)
10% match; rumble strips will be required; cant use Posac; only road 
improvements-no sidewalks; (does not fund ROW or Utility relocation)

51

Item 5.



Questions?

52

Item 5.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

C I T Y    O F    D R I P P I N G    S P R I N G S 
T a x    I n c r e m e n t    R e i n v e s t m e n t    Z o n e  

(TIRZ) #1 and #2 
 
 

R E Q U E S T    F O R    Q U A L I F I C A T I O N S 
 

TIRZ PM’s DRAFT (July 1, 2021) 
 

 
TIRZ Priority Projects:  
Old Fitzhugh Road / Plans, Specifications & Estimates (PSE Phase) 
Mercer Street to Ranch Road 12 
 
Please prepare a Statement of Qualifications to develop the Plans Specifications and Estimates 
(PS&E) phase services which will develop and advance engineering and design of the Old 
Fitzhugh Road Concept Plan (as approved by Dripping Springs City Council August 21, 2018).   
 
The Consultant shall provide design, engineering, supplemental surveying, and other necessary 
services required for the preparation of PSE’s for the Old Fitzhugh Road (OFR) Concept Plan and 
Full Site Plan documents for the City of Dripping Springs (City). These services may include, but 
are not limited to, supplemental surveying, roadway design, traffic engineering and traffic 
calming design, drainage design, multi-use trail design, pedestrian elements and amenities design, 
landscape & streetscape design, safety, and pedestrian illumination design. 
 
Statement of Qualifications shall include a prospective Scope of Work which shall include the 
tasks and activities as outlined below (as applicable- any excluded tasks or scope shall be 
explained).  For each task, provide a descriptive narrative, a task breakdown with estimated level 
of effort for scoping purposes, and a list of prospective deliverables, as applicable: 
 
Outline Scope of Work: (Old Fitzhugh Rd. / PSE’s) 

 
1. Project Management and Administration: (Task 1)-  

1.1. Progress Reporting and Invoicing 
1.2. Project Meetings and Workshops 
1.3. Project Scheduling and Coordination 

53

Item 5.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 2 of 3 

1.4. Right-of-Entry Letters 
1.5. Quality Assurance and Quality Control 
1.6. Milestone Submittal Acceptance and Technical Reviews (30% / 60% / 90% and 100%) 
1.7. Applicable Standards (City of Dripping Springs, City of Austin, State Standards) 
1.8. Design Controls (design exceptions and waivers) 
1.9. General Design Criteria (TxDOT, TMUTCD, NACTO, AASHTO, ADAAG, TAS, 

TCEQ, CODS etc) 
 

2. Supplemental Field Surveying: (Task 2)-  
2.1. Supplemental Field Survey Criteria & Scope of Work 
2.2. Deliverable Survey Data (for Design purposes) 
2.3. Assumptions (Supplements existing ROW Survey - Mercer to RR-12 approx. 3,252 lf) 

 
3. Environmental Document: (Task 3)  

3.1. Categorical Exclusion (CE) Determination & Project Scoping 
3.2. Environmental Data Collection 
3.3. ROW Entry Letters (if needed- for property outside ROW) 
3.4. Air Quality Analysis (if determined) 
3.5. Cultural Resources (Archeological & Non-Archeological- if determined)  
3.6. Community Impact Assessment (if determined) 
3.7. Water Resources Report (if determined) 
3.8. Tier 1 Site Assessment  
3.9. Hazardous Materials 
3.10. Public Meeting (Meeting of Affected Property Owners (MAPO)) 
3.11. Notice Affording Opportunity for Public Hearing 
3.12. Traffic Noise Analysis 

 
4. Roadway Design (Task 4)-  

4.1. Roadway Plans (w/Plan & Roadway Details) 
4.2. Typical Cross Sections (with/without Parking, with/without Landscape / Rain Gardens) 
4.3. Grading & Earthwork (grading coordination details at ROW lines; Cut & Fill Quantities) 
4.4. Driveway Details (layouts of pavement and drainage designs at intersecting driveways) 
4.5. Intersection Designs (layout details at Mercer St. and RR-12 intersections) 
4.6. Traffic Calming & Design 

 
5. Multi-Use Trail & Pedestrian Amenities Design (Task 5)-  

5.1. Trail Plan (w/Plan Details) 
5.2. Typical Trail Cross Sections  
5.3. Driveway Crossings (layouts detailing trail designs at intersecting driveways) 
5.4. Pedestrian Crossing Designs (layout details at Activity Plazas / Traffic Calming) 
5.5. Pedestrian Amenities & Furnishings (Plan Details, Schedules & Specifications) 
5.6. Project Submittal to TDLR (at Final PSE, w/TDLR comments addressed & accepted) 

 
6. Landscape, Streetscape and Urban Design (Task 6)-  

6.1. Landscape & Street Trees Layout & Planting Plans (w/Sections, Details) 

54

Item 5.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4    |    D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 
5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 

 
Page 3 of 3 

6.2. Irrigation Plans & Details (if determined) 
6.3. Landscape & Hardscape Details (Plan Details, Schedules & Specifications) 

 
7. Drainage & Water Quality & Stormwater Design (Task 7)-  

7.1. Drainage Analysis Plans, Criteria & Standards 
7.2. Drainage & Water Quality Study & Memo 
7.3. Hydraulic Design, Data & Documentation 
7.4. Drainage Design & Details (Layouts, Conveyances & Structures, Typical Details) 
7.5. Drainage Easements & Downstream Conveyance Criteria (@ Adjoining Properties) 
7.6. Drainage Swales & Rain Garden Design (include Coordination w/Landscape Design) 
7.7. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P, BMP’s & EPIC) 
7.8. Water Quality Plan (TCEQ & City TCM Standards) 
7.9. Drainage Operations & Maintenance Guidelines (i.e. Rain Gardens) 

 
8. Utility Conflict Review & Coordination (Task 8)-  

8.1. Conflict Identification & Design Resolution (Design Adjustments & Coordination) 
8.2. Utility Notifications Letters (to Utility Providers) 
8.3. Utility Conflict Resolution & Coordination (w/Necessary Relocations; w/Providers) 

 
9. Miscellaneous Services (Task 9)-  

9.1. Traffic Control Plan (TCP) (Detours, Sequence of Construction) 
9.2. Implementation Phasing Plans (for possible Phased Implementation of improvements) 
9.3. Special Specifications / Provisions (Project Manual) 

 
10. Estimating Services (Task 10)-  

10.1. Quantities & Basis of Construction Estimates (TxDOT specified bid items & format) 
10.2. Estimates of Construction Cost (delivered at 30% / 60% / 90% & Final Plan submittals) 
10.3. Contract Time Determination (delivered at 30% (Preliminary) / 90% and Final Plans) 

 
11. Permitting & Bid Phase Services* (Task 11)- *(TBD) 

11.1. Permit Submittals & Coordination (CODS + all other applicable Authorities) 
11.2. Plan Revisions for Permit Acquisition (scoped estimate) 
11.3. Bid Document Preparation & Bid Administration (assistance to City) 

 
12. Construction Phase Services* (Task 12)- *(TBD) 

12.1. Shop Drawing Review & Approval 
12.2. RFI Review Clarifications & Responses 
12.3. Jobsite Observations & Field Reports 

 
 

• PSE Phase Milestones: 30% PSE / 60% PSE / 90% PSE / Final (100%) PSE’s  
 

*   *   * 

55

Item 5.



 
 

 

 

June 3, 2021 
 
Via Email: bfoulds@cityofdrippingsprings.com  
The Honorable Bill Foulds 
Mayor, City of Dripping Springs 
511 Mercer Street 
Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 
 

Re: Resignation from Board of Directors (TIRZ Nos. 1 and 2). 
 

Dear Mayor Foulds: 
 

It is with mixed emotions that I tender my resignation as a board member of the Dripping 
Springs Tax Incremental Reinvestment Zones No. 1 and 2 effective immediately.  Because I was 
appointed to fill a judicial vacancy in Hays County, I am unable to continue to serve in my 
current role on the board.  It has been my privilege to represent Hays County on the TIRZ boards 
since last year.  Although my tenure was short, it was filled with many challenges and rewards.  
Although my hopes that the Town Center would move forward as originally planned did not 
materialize, I am grateful for the opportunity to work with so many dedicated servants of the 
community that give so willingly of their time and talents.  If my limited time on the board has 
earned me a brief audience of its members and its partners, I would encourage each and all that 
have and continue to participate in the redevelopment of Dripping Springs to set aside past 
frustrations and impediments and find new ways to work together to achieve this community’s 
collective goals.  We are stronger as a united community.  Thank you for the privilege of serving 
with each and every one of you.  
 
      Sincerely,  

         
      Daniel O’Brien 
 
cc: walt.smith@co.hays.tx.us  
 Walt Smith, Hays County Commissioner, Precinct 4 
 

tmanassian@cityofdrippingsprings.com  
 Taline Manassian, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 david0158@sbcglobal.net  
 Dave Edwards, Chair 
 
 acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com  
 Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

56

Item 6.

mailto:bfoulds@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:walt.smith@co.hays.tx.us
mailto:tmanassian@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:david0158@sbcglobal.net
mailto:acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com


 

 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

 

        Contact:   Andrea Cunningham, 
 City Secretary 
 City of Dripping Springs 
 512-858-4725 
 
 

Accepting Appointment Applications for  
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) No. 1 & No. 2 Board Place 4 

 
 

The City of Dripping Springs, Texas, is currently accepting applications for the Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) No.1 & No. 2 Board Place 4.  Applications can be downloaded from 
the City’s website and emailed (acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com), mailed (PO Box 
384, Dripping Springs, TX 78620) or hand delivered (City Hall – 511 Mercer Street, Dripping 
Springs, TX 78620) to the attention of the City Secretary.  Applications are due June 30, 2021.  
A description of the Board can be found on the City website, cityofdrippingsprings.com.   

57

Item 6.

mailto:acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com

	Top
	Item 1.	TIRZ: May 2021 Minutes
	05.10.21 TIRZ Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	TIRZ: 2021 Q2 Report
	TIRZ Q2 2021 Administrator Report

	Item 4.	TIRZ: POSAC Update
	POSAC OFR Multi-Use Trail
	POSAC Town Center Square & Pavilion

	Item 5.	TIRZ: Priority Projects
	TIRZ Board Agenda Report_OFR Preliminary Estimate Cost Update_210609 KES
	20210609_Old-Fitz-Preliminary-Estimate
	AGC 2021 Inflation Alert_0
	Old Fitzhugh road update 060821
	OFR Request for Qualifications

	Item 6.	TIRZ: Vacancies and Appointments
	06.04.21 -- TIRZ Resignation_O'Brien, Dan
	Vacancy Press Release_TIRZ

	Bottom

